
TOWN COUNCIL MEETING 

MAY 18,  2015

AGENDA 

MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL 

MAYOR JODY L. MCLEOD COUNCILMAN ART HOLDER 
MAYOR PRO TEM MICHAEL GRANNIS COUNCILMAN R.S. “BUTCH” LAWTER, JR. 
COUNCILMAN BOB SATTERFIELD COUNCILMAN JASON THOMPSON 

TOWN STAFF 

STEVE BIGGS, TOWN MANAGER 
KIMBERLY A. MOFFETT, TOWN CLERK 

BRUCE THOMPSON II, TOWN ATTORNEY 

P. O. Box 879 - Clayton, North Carolina 27528 - Office (919) 553-5002 - Fax (919) 553-8919 

  Jody L. McLeod Bob Satterfield 

       MAYOR          R.S. “Butch” Lawter, Jr. 

Art Holder  

   Bruce Thompson Jason Thompson   

TOWN ATTORNEY COUNCIL MEMBERS 

     Steve Biggs Michael Grannis 

 TOWN MANAGER   MAYOR PRO TEM 



AGENDA 
THE WORK SESSION MEETING OF THE CLAYTON TOWN COUNCIL 

 
MONDAY, MAY 18, 2015      THE CLAYTON CENTER 
6:30 PM         COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation  
 
2. ADJUSTMENT OF THE AGENDA 
 
3. CONSENT AGENDA 

(Items on the consent agenda are considered routine in nature or have been thoroughly discussed 
at previous meetings.  Any member of the Council may request to have an item removed from the 
consent agenda for further discussion.) 
a. Budget Amendment Ordinance 

 
Potential Action:  Approval of Consent Agenda as Presented 

 
4. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 
 a.   Warranty and Dedication Acceptances:  

• East Village Lift Station, Gravity Sewer & Force Main 
• Johnston Medical Hospital – Water/Sewer 

 
Potential Action:  Place on June 1, 2015 Consent Agenda 

 
b. Direct Clerk to Investigate Sufficiency of Petition for Voluntary Annexation – 

14-100-01-ANX 
 

Potential Action:  Place on June 1, 2015 Consent Agenda 
 
c. Set Public Hearing to Receive Public Comment on Proposed FY 15-16   Budget 
 

Potential Action:  Set Public Hearing for June 1, 2015 
 

5. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION  
a.   Resolution Application to Local Government Commission for Approval of 

Electric System Revenue Bonds 
 
         Potential Action:  Approval of Resolution  
 
Brief adjournment will take place for Town Council to attend “A Solider’s Walk Home” Ceremony 

to be held at Town Square 
 
6. INTRODUCTIONS AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

a. North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency – Power Sales Agreement 
 

Potential Action:  Approval of Ordinance 
  

Page 1 of 174



b. US 70/70 and US 70/42 Infrastructure Report 
 

Potential Action:  Receive Report – No Action Needed 
 
c. 2015 National Main Street Program Accreditation Certificate 

 
Potential Action:  No Action Needed 

 
7. ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR THE REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
a. Rezoning – 2014-99 Magnolia Point Rezoning -  PD-MU & R-10 to R-8 
 

Potential Action:  Set Public Hearing for June 1, 2015 
 
b. Text Amendment – Modification to Article 2 of the Unified Development Code  
 

Potential Action:   Set Public Hearing for June 1, 2015 
 
c. Award of Bid for the 2014 Clayton Streets Project 

 
Potential Action:  Place on June 1, 2015 Consent Agenda 

 
d. Special Event – Grill Fest – Town Square - July 11, 2015 

 
Potential Action:  Place on June 1, 2015 Consent Agenda  
 

e. Sole Sourcing of Nitrogen Process Equipment 
 

Potential Action:  Place on June 1, 2015 Consent Agenda 
 
8. ITEMS CONTINGENT FOR THE REGULAR MEETING 

 
9. OLD BUSINESS  
 
10. STAFF REPORTS 

a. Town Manager 
b. Town Attorney 
c. Town Clerk  
d. Other Staff 

 
11. OTHER BUSINESS 

a. Informal Discussion & Public Comment 
b. Council Comments 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 3a    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: Budget Amendment 
 
DESCRIPTION: This budget amendment Ordinance is necessary to budget 

the revenues and related expenditures for the following 
items, Black Dot Tower Easement Sale, Closeout Front Street 
Project, Damage Reimbursement, Tower Deposits Forfeiture 
and Recreation Grant Proceeds.      

 
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
 
5-4-15   Place on Consent   Ordinance 
 
5-18-15   Consent    Ordinance 
         
 
 
         
         
 
 
 
  
         
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 174



Ordinance #2015-05-04 
Town of Clayton 

Amendment to the FY 14-15 Budget 
 

 BE IT HEREBY ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL FOR THE TOWN OF 
CLAYTON that the following amendments shall be made to the FY 14-15 Budget: 
 
Fund: General Fund 
 
  Previous  Revised 
 Line Item Appropriation Adjustment Appropriation 
Expenditures 
 
100-40-01-59 02  Misc. Contingency 
        $0  +150,509       $150,509 
100-42-15-52 60 Equipment Purchase 
              $250     +3,217          $3,467 
100-42-15-52 85 Departmental Supplies 
            $1,600      +1,550          $3,150 
100-42-16-52 85 Departmental Supplies 
              $800        +700          $1,500 
100-42-95-58 50 Capital Outlay 
          $27,000      +1,959        $28,959 
100-50-31-52 50                Contracted Vehicle Service 
            $5,000      +9,250        $14,250 
100-55-55-58 12 Street Repair and Improvements 
         $294,468  +191,609      $486,077 
100-60-02-50-52 37           Maint and Repair-Buildings 
            $2,700      +2,500         $5,200 
100-60-74-52 38 Maint and Repair-Grounds 
           $50,898     +5,000        $55,898 
Revenue 
 
100-40-00-48 72 Misc. Sale of Real Property 
       $0 +150,509      $150,509 
100-40-00-48 97                Miscellaneous Income 
      $0     +7,426         $7,426 
100-50-00-43 80                Damage Reimbursement 
       $0      +9,250        $9,250 
100-55-02-48 60                Reimbursable Projects 
       $5,000 +191,609    $196,609 
100-60-02-43 80                Damage Reimbursement 
       $0     +2,500        $2,500 
100-60-02-45 12                Grant Funds-Recreation 
       $11,500     +5,000      $16,500 
 
Explanation: Amendment necessary to budget the revenues and related expenditures for 
the following items, which is required for compliance with G.S. 159-15: 

Page 4 of 174



 
1. Black Dot Tower Easement Sale – $150,509 
2. Closeout Front Street Project – $191,609  
3. Damage Reimbursements – $11,750 
4. Tower Deposits Forfeiture – $7,426 
5. Recreation Grant Proceeds – $5,000  

 
   
Duly adopted this 18th day of  May, 2015 while in regular session. 
 
 

    _____________________________________ 
   Jody L. McLeod 

   Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Anna C. Anastasi 
Deputy Town Clerk 

Page 5 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 4a    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: Warranty and Dedication Acceptances; 

• Johnston Medical Hospital – 50 Be Addition 
• East Village Lift Station, gravity Sewer & Force Main 

 
DESCRIPTION: Acceptance public water and sewer utilities along with all 

pertinent easements.  Record drawings have been reviewed 
and accepted  Following acceptance, lines will be subject t a 
one year warranty period and upon expiration of such period 
final inspection will be completed and any deficient items 
corrected by developer’s contractor prior to FINAL 
acceptance. 

  
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   Place on June 1, 2015   Inspectors Memos 
    Consent Agenda     
         
 
 
 

Page 6 of 174



Page 7 of 174



Page 8 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 4b    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: Voluntary Annexation – 14-199-01-ANX – East Village Investments 
 
DESCRIPTION: Consideration of Resolution instructing the Town Clerk to 

investigate the sufficiency of submitted petition for 
annexation. 

  
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   Place on June 1, 2015   Application   
    Consent Agenda   Annexation Map 
             
         
 
 
 

Page 9 of 174



Page 10 of 174



Page 11 of 174



Page 12 of 174



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

NC OneMap, NC Center for Geographic Information and Analysis, NC 911
Board

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

-Annexation Map

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant(s): East Village Investments LLC
Property Owner(s): East Village Investments LLC
Parcel Number(s) Portion of 05H03008L
File Number(s): 14-100-01-Anx

Legend

!

!

!

!

Clayton Town Limits
Clayton ETJ
Parcels
Area to be Annexed

April 20, 2015

1 inch = 100 feet

OLD NC 42 HWY E

NC 42
 HWY E

WALDEN WAY

E FRONT ST

R-10 Zoning

R-8 Zoning

Area to be Annexed
0.09 Acres

O-I Zoning

PD-R Zoning

R-E Zoning

B-3 Zoning

R-E Zoning

WA
LD

EN
 W

AY
OLD NC 42 HWY E

I-2 Zoning

Page 13 of 174



Page 14 of 174



Resolution #2015-20 
 
ANNEXATION PETITION 14-100-01ANX 
East Village Investments LLC 
Portion of Parcel 05H03008L 
Owner:  East Village Investments LLC 
Contiguous: 0.09 acres 
 

TOWN OF CLAYTON 
RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE CLERK TO INVESTIGATE 

A PETITION RECEIVED UNDER G.S. 160a-31 
 
 

WHEREAS, a petition requesting annexation of an area described in said petition  
was received on April 13, 2015, by the Town of Clayton; and 
 
WHEREAS, G.S. 160A-31 provides that the sufficiency of the petition shall be 
investigated by the Town Clerk before further annexation proceedings may take 
place; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Clayton deems it advisable to 
proceed in response to this request for annexation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Clayton that: 
 
The Town Clerk is hereby directed to investigate the sufficiency of the above-
described petition and to certify as soon as possible to the Town Council the 
results of her investigation. 
 
Duly adopted this 18th day of May, 2015, while in regular session. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Jody L. McLeod 

Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Anna C. Anastasi 
Deputy Town Clerk 

Page 15 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 4c    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: Public Hearing to receive public comment on the proposed 2015-

2106 FY budget. 
 
DESCRIPTION: Consideration of Resolution instructing the Town Clerk to 

investigate the sufficiency of submitted petition for 
annexation. 

  
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   Set Public Hearing  Public Notice 
    For June 1, 2015 
             
         
 
 
 

Page 16 of 174



 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
In accordance with NC GS 159-12(b), the Clayton Town Council will hold a 
public hearing on Monday, June 1, 2015, at 6:30 PM at Town Hall, 111 East 
Second Street, to receive public comment on the proposed 2015-2016 
fiscal year budget for the Town of Clayton.  A copy of the proposed budget 
is on file in the Town Clerk’s office at Town Hall, 111 East Second Street. 
 
This is an open meeting and citizens are invited to attend. 
 
Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC, Town Clerk 
919-553-5002 
______________________________________ 
Clayton News-Star 
 
Please advertise on the following date: 
 
May 20, 2105 
May 27, 2015 
 
 
Affidavit of publication required. 

Page 17 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 5a    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: Electric System Revenue Bonds 
 
DESCRIPTION: Resolution will authorize issuance of Electric System 

Revenue Bonds to provide funds for construction 
improvements to the electric system.  Finance Director, 
Robert McKie will be present to answer any questions 
regarding this item. 

  
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   Approval of Resolution  Resolution   
  
         
 
 
 

Page 18 of 174



Resolution # 2015-21 

TOWN COUNCIL 
OF THE 

TOWN OF CLAYTON, NORTH CAROLINA 

Excerpt of Minutes 
of Meeting of 
May 18, 2015 

Present: Mayor ________________ presiding, and 

Councilmembers:    

Absent:    

* * * * * * * * * * 

Councilmember ____________ introduced the following resolution, the title of which 

was read: 

RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR APPLICATION TO THE 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION FOR APPROVAL OF 
ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS; REQUESTING 
LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMISSION APPROVAL OF 
SUCH ELECTRIC SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS; AND 
CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS AND FINDINGS 

WHEREAS, the Town of Clayton, North Carolina (the “Town”) acting by and through its 
Town Council (the “Council”), is authorized by The State and Local Government Revenue Bond 
Act of North Carolina, as amended, to issue revenue bonds to provide moneys for the 
acquisition, construction, reconstruction, extension, improvement or payment of the cost of one 
or more revenue bond projects, including electric systems or facilities; and 

WHEREAS, on June 17, 2008, the Town adopted a Bond Order (the “Bond Order”) 
entitled: 

BOND ORDER AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF ELECTRIC 
SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS TO PROVIDE FUNDS TO CONSTRUCT 
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE ELECTRIC SYSTEM; PROVIDING FOR 
THE ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL REVENUE BONDS; PROVIDING 
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES IN 
ANTICIPATION OF THE ISSUANCE OF REVENUE BONDS; 
PROVIDING FOR THE CREATION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL FUNDS; 
PLEDGING TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF AND THE 
INTEREST ON THE REVENUE BONDS AND NOTES CERTAIN 
REVENUES OF THE ELECTRIC SYSTEM; SETTING FORTH THE 

Page 19 of 174



RIGHTS AND REMEDIES OF HOLDERS; AND SETTING FORTH THE 
DETAILS OF CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS 

 WHEREAS the Town Council has determined that it is necessary to make certain capital 
improvements to the Town’s electric system (the “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council is considering the issuance of Electric System Revenue 
Bonds (the “Bonds”) as permitted under the Bond Order in an amount not to exceed $650,000 in 
the aggregate principal amount (the “Bonds”) to finance a portion of the cost of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes the Town Manager and the Town Finance 
Director to file with the Local Government Commission of North Carolina (the “LGC”) an 
application for its approval of the Bonds, on a form provided by the LGC and make certain 
findings therefor; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council wishes to retain Hunton & Williams LLP, Raleigh, North 
Carolina, as bond counsel for the issuance and sale of the Bonds; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Council for the Town of Clayton, in a regularly scheduled 
meeting on May 18, 2015, does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. The Bonds are to be issued by the Town for the purpose of providing funds to 
finance the costs of the Project and to pay the costs of issuing the Bonds as set out in the Town’s 
application to the LGC; 

2. Hunton & Williams LLP shall be retained to serve as bond counsel; 

3. The Town Manager or the Town Finance Director and bond counsel, are hereby 
authorized, directed and designated to file an application with the North Carolina Local 
Government Commission for its approval of the issuance of the Bonds; 

4. The Mayor, the Town Manager and the Town Finance Director are hereby 
authorized and directed to take all actions in furtherance of the issuance of the Bonds, including 
issuing a request for proposals to solicit proposals from banks and other financial institutions to 
purchase the Bonds; 

5. In connection with the application to the LGC, the Town Council hereby makes 
the following findings: 

a. The Town Council hereby finds that the Bonds are necessary and expedient to 
finance the cost of the Project. 

b. The Town Council hereby finds that the Project is feasible. 

c. The Town Council hereby finds that the amount of debt to be incurred in 
connection with the Project and the fees to be paid in connection therewith are 
sufficient but not excessive for the purpose of acquiring, constructing and 
installing the Project by paying debt service on the Bonds. 

d. The Town Council hereby finds that a rate increase will not be required in order 
to pay debt service on the Bonds. 

e. The Town has not defaulted on any debt obligation. 

f. The Town follows the debt management guidelines of the North Carolina Local 
Government Commission. 

Page 20 of 174



6. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

Councilmember __________ moved the passage of the foregoing resolution and 
Councilmember ____________ seconded the motion and the resolution was passed by the 
following vote: 

Ayes: Councilmember   

Nays: Councilmember   

Not voting: Councilmember  

* * * * * * * 

Page 21 of 174



 

I, Kimberly A. Moffett, Clerk for the Town of Clayton, North Carolina, DO HEREBY 
CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of so much of the proceedings of the 
Town Council for the Town at a regular meeting duly called and held on May 18, 2015, and that 
the proceedings of such meeting are recorded in the Minutes of said Council.  Pursuant to G.S. 
§ 143-318.12, a current copy of a schedule of regular meetings of the Town Council of the Town 
is on file in my office. 

 
WITNESS my hand and the official seal of the Town this ___ day of May, 2015. 
     
       

        
 Kimberly A. Moffett, CMC, NCCMC, Clerk 

       Town of Clayton, North Carolina 
(SEAL) 

73465.000006 EMF_US 49847197v2 Page 22 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 6a    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: North Carolina Eastern Municipal Power Agency – Power Sales 

Agreement 
 
DESCRIPTION: Mr. Tim Tunis, representative of Electricities will be present 

to offer assistance and provide any requested information 
with reference to adoption of the Municipal Ordinance 
approving transaction with Duke Energy.  

  
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   Approval of Ordinance  Ordinance   

Power Purchase 
Agreement (FRPSA) 
Debt Service Support 
Contract (DSSC) 
Power Sales Agreement 
Termination Agreement 
(PSATA) 

   
    
         
 
 
 

Page 23 of 174



Page 24 of 174



Page 25 of 174



Page 26 of 174



Page 27 of 174



Page 28 of 174



Page 29 of 174



Page 30 of 174



Page 31 of 174



Page 32 of 174



Page 33 of 174



Page 34 of 174



Page 35 of 174



Page 36 of 174



Page 37 of 174



Page 38 of 174



Page 39 of 174



Page 40 of 174



Page 41 of 174



Page 42 of 174



Page 43 of 174



Page 44 of 174



Page 45 of 174



Page 46 of 174



Page 47 of 174



Page 48 of 174



Page 49 of 174



Page 50 of 174



Page 51 of 174



Page 52 of 174



Page 53 of 174



Page 54 of 174



Page 55 of 174



Page 56 of 174



Page 57 of 174



Page 58 of 174



Page 59 of 174



Page 60 of 174



Page 61 of 174



Page 62 of 174



Page 63 of 174



Page 64 of 174



Page 65 of 174



Page 66 of 174



Page 67 of 174



Page 68 of 174



Page 69 of 174



Page 70 of 174



Page 71 of 174



Page 72 of 174



Page 73 of 174



Page 74 of 174



Page 75 of 174



Page 76 of 174



Page 77 of 174



Page 78 of 174



Page 79 of 174



Page 80 of 174



Page 81 of 174



Page 82 of 174



Page 83 of 174



Page 84 of 174



Page 85 of 174



Page 86 of 174



Page 87 of 174



Page 88 of 174



Page 89 of 174



Page 90 of 174



Page 91 of 174



Page 92 of 174



Page 93 of 174



Page 94 of 174



Page 95 of 174



Page 96 of 174



Page 97 of 174



Page 98 of 174



Page 99 of 174



Page 100 of 174



Page 101 of 174



Page 102 of 174



Page 103 of 174



Page 104 of 174



Page 105 of 174



Page 106 of 174



Page 107 of 174



Page 108 of 174



Page 109 of 174



Page 110 of 174



Page 111 of 174



Page 112 of 174



Page 113 of 174



Page 114 of 174



Page 115 of 174



Page 116 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 6b    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: US 70/70 and US 70/42 Infrastructure Report 
 
DESCRIPTION: A representative from AECOM will present the Infrastructure 

Analysis Reports for both the following locations: 
• US 70 Business West and US 70 West (Scenic) 
• US 42 West and US 70 (Bypass) 

  
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15 None – Information Only  Infrastructure Analysis       

     Reports 
     
 
 
 

Page 117 of 174



Page 118 of 174



Page 119 of 174



Page 120 of 174



Page 121 of 174



Page 122 of 174



Page 123 of 174



Page 124 of 174



Page 125 of 174



Page 126 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 6c    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: 2015 National Main Street Program Accreditation 
 
DESCRIPTION: The Town of Clayton has been designated as an accredited 

2015 National Main Street Program.   Mr. Naegelen, 
Downtown Development Coordinator, will be present to 
provide additional information.  This is the 8th consecutive 
year the Town has received accreditation from the National 
Trust.   

  
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   None – Information Only  Staff Memo 
         Accreditation Certif. 
   
         
 
 
 

Page 127 of 174



 
Vision 2025: Destination Where People, Businesses & the Arts Thrive 

A North Carolina Main Street Community  

   
TO:  Mayor, Town Council, Town Manager 
FROM:  Bruce Naegelen, Downtown Development Coordinator 
CC:  James Lipscomb, DDA Chair; David DeYoung, Planning Director 
DATE:  May 7, 2015 
SUBJECT: 2015 National Main Street Accreditation 
 
The Town of Clayton has been designated as an accredited 2015 National Main Street Program for meeting the 
commercial district revitalization performance standards in 2014 set by the National Main Street Center®, a 
subsidiary of the National Trust for Historic Preservation. Each year, the National Main Street Center and its 
partners announce the list of accredited Main Street® programs in recognition of their exemplary commitment to 
historic preservation and community revitalization through the Main Street Four Point Approach®. 
  
This is the 8th consecutive year the Town has received accreditation from the National Trust  
 
The organization’s performance is annually evaluated by the North Carolina Main Street Center, which works in 
partnership with the National Main Street Center to identify the local programs that meet ten performance 
standards. These standards set the benchmarks for measuring an individual Main Street program’s application of 
the Main Street Four Point Approach® to commercial district revitalization. Evaluation criteria determines the 
communities that are building comprehensive and sustainable revitalization efforts and include standards such as 
fostering strong public-private partnerships, securing an operating budget, tracking programmatic progress and 
actively preserving historic buildings. 
 
Although we met the standards for accreditation, NC Main Street Director Liz Parham had one recommendation 
as a means of continuing to grow and strengthening Clayton’s Main Street program: 
 
The Assessment question asks if your program encourages policies and ordinances that prevent demolition of 
historic structures.  We recommend that each community work with the planning department to develop and 
maintain codes and ordinances that will protect historic structures.  These may include things such as the rehab 
code, demolition by neglect ordinances in collaboration with incentives to encourage repair instead of demolition, 
local historic districts and local landmarks, etc.   
 
Over the past eight years, more than $10,000,000 has been invested privately in downtown Clayton. 36 facades 
have been improved, with 6 building renovations. A total of 193 jobs have been created with 60 new businesses 
and 10 business expansions. For every public dollar invested in downtown Clayton last fiscal year, $3.09 was 
invested privately.  
 
Established by the National Trust for Historic Preservation in 1980, the National Main Street Center helps 
communities of all sizes revitalize their older and historic commercial districts. Working in more than 2,000 
downtowns and urban neighborhoods over the last 35 years, the Main Street program has leveraged more than 
$61.7 billion in new public and private investment. Participating communities have created 528,557 net new jobs 
and 120,510 net new businesses, and rehabilitated more than 251,838 buildings, leveraging an average of $26.52 
in new investment for every dollar spent on their Main Street district revitalization efforts. 
 
 

Page 128 of 174



Page 129 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 7a    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: Rezoning – 2014-99 – Magnolia Pointe – PD-MU and R-10 to R-8 
 
DESCRIPTION: Request to rezone the above property which is located aon 

Shotwell Road in between US 70 Business Highway west and 
Amelia Church Road.  This 13.89 acre parcel is vacant and 
across Shotwell Road from Lions’s Spring.  

 
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   Set Public Hearing  Staff Report 
    for June 1, 2015   Maps 
         Application 
          
         
 
 
         
         
 
 
 
  
         
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 130 of 174



Page 1 of 3 

Town Council 
May 18, 2015 

STAFF REPORT

Application Number: RZ 2014-99 
Project Name: Magnolia Pointe Rezoning 

NC PIN / Tag #: 165914-33-6257 / 05B02031V 
Town Limits/ETJ: Town Limits 
Overlay: NA 
Applicant:  ASCO Builders Inc., c/o Matt Shephens (mattshephens@bellsouth.net) 
Owner: ASCO Builders Inc. 

Neighborhood Meeting:  Held on 08/26/2014. No meeting minutes have been submitted. Staff has 
requested minutes from the applicant, and expects materials to be submitted 
before the Town Council Workshop on May 18, 2015. 

Public Noticing: 

 sign posted April 17, 2015

 letters mailed TBD, 2015

 Published notice placed as required per Section 155.702(D)(2)(a) of the UDC

PROJECT LOCATION:   The property is located on Shotwell Road, in between US 70 Bus Hwy W and Amelia 
Church Rd. This vacant parcel is across Shotwell Rd from Lion’s Spring. 

REQUEST:   The applicant is requesting approval to rezone 13.89 acres at the location described above from 
Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and Residential-10 (R-10) to Residential-8 (R-8).  

SITE DATA: 

Acreage: 13.89 acres  

Present Zoning:  Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and Residential-10 (R-10) 

Proposed Zoning: Residential-8 (R-8) 

Existing Use: Vacant 

ADJACENT ZONING AND LAND USES: 

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 

P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-1545 

Fax:  919-553-1720 

Page 131 of 174

mailto:mattshephens@bellsouth.net


Page 2 of 3 

North:  Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 
Existing Use: Single Family Residential 

South:  Zoning: Planned Development Mixed Use (PD-MU) and Office-Institutional (O-I) 
Existing Use: Lion’s Gate planned development and a doctor’s office. 

East: Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 
Existing Use: Lion’s Gate planned development (approved for townhome development)  and 

Lion’s Spring retirement residential 

West: Zoning: Residential-Estate (R-E) 
Existing Use: Single Family Residential 

STAFF ANALYSIS AND COMMENTARY: 

Overview 
The applicant is requesting approval for rezoning of the subject property to Residential-8. The applicant has 
indicated that if approved, the site would be developed as an open-space subdivision.   

R-8 permits development of single family lots with a minimum of 8,000 square feet in a conventional 
subdivision.  If developed as an open space subdivision, single family lots are permitted at a minimum of 6,000 
sf, or 4,800 sf if alley-loaded. Duplexes, townhomes, and multi-family development are permitted only with a 
Special Use Permit.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Land Uses 
The site is bounded on three sides by some form of residential use.  The site is currently vacant and has been 
graded. This rezoning request is running concurrently with a subdivision plan for the same property (PSD2014-
97). The rezoning and proposed development is compatible with surrounding uses. 

Access/Streets:  
The property fronts on and is currently accessed from Shotwell Road. 

Consistency with the Strategic Growth Plan 
This rezoning is consistent with the Strategic Growth Plan, Goal 2.5: “More Housing Opportunities: 
Beyond Starter Homes.” 

CONSIDERATIONS: 

 The applicant is requesting a rezoning from PD-MU and R-10 to R-8, in anticipation of a R-8 Open Space
Residential Subdivision.

 Rezonings are decided by the Town Council. The Planning Board shall make a recommendation to the
Town Council.

Page 132 of 174



Page 3 of 3 

 When adopting or rejecting the rezoning, the Town Council shall approve a statement describing
whether its action is consistent with an adopted plans and policies of the town and explaining why the
board considers the action taken to be reasonable and in the public interest.

 Application has since been revised to a standard zoning category instead of a PD zoning category, with
minor alterations to the original site layout.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff is recommending approval of the rezoning. 

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION: 

Planning Board recommended approval of the rezoning. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1) Aerial Map
2) Existing and Proposed Zoning Map
3) Proposed Land Use Map
4) Table 2.1 – allowed uses
5) Application
6) Neighborhood Meeting Materials (if available)
7) Planning Board Motion Form

Page 133 of 174



SH
OTW

EL
L R

D  

MULBERRY RD 

RIDGE DR 

US 70 BUS HWY W

VE
RR

AZ
AN

O 
PL

 TUSCARORA LN

SIO
UX

 LN

KENMORE DR 

KE
SW

ICK
 LN

 

Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

PSD2014-97 and RZ2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Subdivision
Subdivision and Rezoning from R-10 and PD-MU to R-8

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: ASCO Builders Inc
Property Owner: ASCO Builders Inc
Parcel ID Number: 165914-33-6257
Tag #: 05B02031V

03/14/2015

GUY RD 

US 70 BUS HWY W MAIN ST  

SH
OT

WE
LL

 R
D 

 

CI
TY

 R
D 

LOMBARD ST 

MULBERRY RD 
RIDGE DR 

SE
S 

DR
  

BROOK ST  

0 2,9001,450 Feet

Vicinity Map

Aerial Map

0 500250 Feet

±

Subject parcel

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\REZONING\Rezoning\2014\RZ 2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Rezoning\maps\Staff Rpt Map RZ2014-99 - Aerial.mxd

Page 134 of 174



B-3

PD-C

R-E

R-10

PD-MUO-I

SH
OTW

EL
L R

D  

US 70 BUS HWY W

MULBERRY RD

RIDGE DR 

FE
RN

WOO
D D

R 

TUSCARORA LN VE
RR

AZ
AN

O 
PL

 SIOUX LN
Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

PSD2014-97 and RZ2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Subdivision
Subdivision and Rezoning from R-10 and PD-MU to R-8

Produced by: TOC Planning

Applicant: ASCO Builders Inc
Property Owner: ASCO Builders Inc
Parcel ID Number: 165914-33-6257
Tag #: 05B02031V

3/14/2015

GUY RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W

MAIN ST  SH
OT

WE
LL

 R
D 

LOMBARD ST 

MULBERRY RD 
RIDGE DR 

SE
S 

DR
  

BROOK ST  

0 4,7002,350 Feet

B-3

PD-C

R-E

R-10

PD-MUO-I

SH
OTW

EL
L R

D  

US 70 BUS HWY W

MULBERRY RD

RIDGE DR

FE
RN

WOO
D D

R 

TUSCARORA LN VE
RR

AZ
AN

O 
PL

 SIOUX LN

±

Vicinity Map

Proposed Zoning MapCurrent Zoning Map

0 1,000500 Feet0 1,000500 Feet

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\REZONING\Rezoning\2014\RZ 2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Rezoning\maps\Staff Rpt Map RZ2014-99 - Existing and Proposed Zoning.mxd

R-8

Legend
Subject parcel
R-E
R-10
R-8
R-6
PD-R
O-R
B-1

B-2
B-3
PD-C
I-1
I-2
O-I
PD-MU

R-10

Page 135 of 174



Disclaimer: Town of Clayton assumes no legal
responsibility for the information represented here.

Proposed Land Use Map (Source: 2008 Strategic Growth Plan)
PSD2014-97 and RZ2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Subdivision
Subdivision and Rezoning from R-10 and PD-MU to R-8

Produced by: TOC Planning

03/14/2015

GUY RD  

US 70 BUS HWY W
MAIN ST  

CI
TY

 R
D 

 

LOMBARD ST  

RIDGE DR  

SE
S 

DR
  

0 4,4002,200 Feet

US 70 BUS HWY W

AMELIA CHURCH RD  
SH

OTW
EL

L R
D  

RIDGE DR  

MOORE ST  

MULBERRY RD  

CHARLES ST  

ATKINSON ST  

MAIN ST  

FE
RN

WOO
D D

R  

ROBERTSON ST  

SECOND ST  

BROOK ST  

KENMORE DR  

WILLOW DR  

PARK DR  
CR

EE
KV

IEW
 D

R 
 CARTER ST  

SIOUX LN  

KERSHAW LN  

JOEL CT  
RIDGE DR  

±

Vicinity Map

Proposed Land Use Map (Source: 2008 Strategic Growth Plan)

0 1,000500 Feet

Legend
Subject parcel

PROPOSED LAND USE
CBD
COMMERCIAL
INDUSTRIAL
MULTI-FAMILY
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL
OFFICE INSTITUTIONAL
OPEN SPACE CONSERVATION
PUBLIC
RESIDENTIAL-INFILL
RESIDENTIAL-LIGHT
RESIDENTIAL-MEDIUM
SMALL AREA PLAN

Applicant: ASCO Builders Inc
Property Owner: ASCO Builders Inc
Parcel ID Number: 165914-33-6257
Tag #: 05B02031V

 

Document Path: O:\PLANNING\REZONING\Rezoning\2014\RZ 2014-99 Magnolia Pointe Rezoning\maps\Staff Rpt Map RZ2014-99 - FLUM.mxd

Page 136 of 174



Abridged Use Table, created: March 16, 2015 
Town of Clayton, NC 

Table 2-1 Use Regulations 

Use Type 

Zoning Districts 

Specific Use 
Section 

Residential Nonresidential 

R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 

Residential Uses 

Adult Care Home (2-6 Adults) P P P P §155.301(A) 

Adult Care Home (7-12 Adults) S S S S C S S S §155.301(A) 

Adult Care Home (13+ Adults) C S S S §155.301(A) 

Alley Loaded House P P P §155.301(B) 

Apartments S S S S S S S S §155.301(C) 

Boarding House C P P §155.301(D) 

Child Care Home C C C C C §155.301(E) 

Manufactured Home P §155.301(F) 

Manufactured Home Park S §155.301(G) 

Nursing Home (Congregate Living Facility) C C P S P §155.301(H) 

Two family House S S S S §155.301(I) 

Townhouse S S S S S S S S §155.301(J) 

Security/Caretaker Quarters C C §155.301(K) 

Single Family House P P P P §155.301(L) 

Upper-story Residence S S S S S P P P P §155.301(M) 

Zero Lot Line House P P P §155.301(N) 

Public and Civic Uses 

Assembly, Not For Profit S P P §155.302(A) 

Cemetery P P §155.302(B)

Church or Place of Worship C C C C C C C §155.302(C)

College or University P §155.302(D)

Day Care (Supervision for 3-8 ) C C C C C §155.302(E)

Day Care (Supervision for 9+) C C C C C P P C P §155.302(E)

Government Service S S S S P P P P P P P §155.302(F)

Hospital or Medical Center P P §155.302(G)

School (Elementary or Secondary) S S S S S §155.302(H)

School (Technical, Trade or Business) S S S S P P P P P §155.302(I)

Recreational Uses 

Entertainment, Indoor  C C C P P §155.303(A) 

Entertainment, Outdoor C P §155.303(B) 

Fitness Center C C C P P §155.303(C) 

Golf Course P P P P §155.303(D) 

Gun Range S S S S S §155.303(E) 

Park, Active S S S S S S S S S S S §155.303(F) 

Park, Passive C C C C P P C C C C C §155.303(G) 

Stable, Private P §155.303(H) 

Agricultural Uses 

Agriculture, Livestock C C §155.304(A) 

Agriculture, Sales and Service P C §155.304(B) 

Nursery P P P C P §155.304(C) 

Commercial Uses 

Adult Oriented Business S S §155.305(A) 

Bed and Breakfast P P P P P §155.305(B) 

Car Wash/Auto Detailing C C P P §155.305(C) 

Contractor Office C C P P P §155.305(D) 

Contractor Storage Yard C C P §155.305(E) 

Convenience Store with Gas Sales C C P P P §155.305(F) 

Creative Studio P P P P P §155.305(G) 

Financial Institution P P P P P §155.305(H) 

Funeral Home C P P P P P §155.305(I) 

Hotel/Motel S S S P §155.305(J) 

Kennel C C §155.305(K) 

Laundry Services C C P P §155.305(L) 

Lounge, Cocktail S S S S §155.305(M) 

Microbrewery P P P P §155.305(N) 

Page 137 of 174



Abridged Use Table, created: March 16, 2015 
Town of Clayton, NC 

Use Type 

Zoning Districts 

Specific Use 
Section 

Residential Nonresidential 

R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 

Newspaper Publisher P P P §155.305(O) 

Office, General P P P P P P §155.305(P) 

Office, Medical P P P P P P §155.305(Q) 

Outdoor Seating/Sidewalk Cafe C P C C §155.305(R) 

Pawn Shop C P §155.305(S) 

Radio or Television Studio P P P §155.305(T) 

Restaurant, Drive-Through  C C C §155.305(U) 

Restaurant, General C P P P C §155.305(V) 

Retail Sales, General P P §155.305(W) 

Retail Sales, Neighborhood P P P §155.305(X) 

Self-storage Facility C P P §155.305(Y) 

Service, General P P §155.305(Z) 

Service, Neighborhood P P P §155.305(AA) 

Tattoo Parlor S §155.305(BB) 

Towing Service and Storage C C C §155.305(CC) 

Vehicle Repair or Service S P P §155.305(DD) 

Vehicle Sales and Rental P P P §155.305(EE) 

Veterinary Clinic C C C P §155.305(FF) 

Video Sweepstakes Operations S §155.305(GG) 

Industrial Uses 

Building Supplies, Wholesale C P P §155.306(A) 

Crematorium P P §155.306(B) 

Gas and Fuel, Wholesale P P §155.306(C) 

Laboratory, Research P P P P §155.306(D) 

Manufacturing, Limited P P §155.306(E) 

Manufacturing, General C P §155.306(F) 

Manufacturing, Heavy P §155.306(G) 

Research and Development P P P P §155.306(H) 

Warehouse, Freight Movement C P P §155.306(I) 

Utilities 

Recycling Center P P §155.307(A) 

Renewable Energy Facility S C P §155.307(B) 

Telecommunication Facility S S S S S S S S S S S §155.307(C) 

Utility, Minor P P P P P P P P P P P §155.307(D) 

Utility, Major P P §155.307(E) 

Waste Service C P §155.307(F) 

Key: 

P – Permitted 

C – Conditional Use permitted in the zoning district only if approved by the Board of Adjustment (BOA) ( § 155.710) 

S – Special Use permitted in the zoning district only if approved by the Town Council (TC) ) ( § 155.711) 

 (Ord. 2005-11-02, passed 11-21-05; Am. Ord. 2007-05-02, passed 5-7-07; Am. Ord. 2009-06-06, 
passed 6-1-09; Am. Ord. 2009-08-03, passed 8-3-09; Am. Ord 2014-12-02, passed 12-1-14) 

Page 138 of 174

http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Clayton,%20NC%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A180a$cid=north%20carolina$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_155.710$3.0#JD_155.710
http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Clayton,%20NC%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A180a$cid=north%20carolina$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_155.710$3.0#JD_155.710


Page 139 of 174



Page 140 of 174



Page 141 of 174



Page 142 of 174



Page 143 of 174



Page 144 of 174



Page 145 of 174



Page 146 of 174



Page 147 of 174



Page 148 of 174



Page 149 of 174



Page 150 of 174



Page 151 of 174



Page 152 of 174



Page 153 of 174



Page 154 of 174



Page 155 of 174



Page 156 of 174



Page 157 of 174



Page 158 of 174



Page 159 of 174



Page 160 of 174



COUNCIL MOTION SHEET 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 

(Rezoning)  

After considering the recommendations of the Planning Board and Planning 
Director, I move to [approve OR deny]  Rezoning 2014-99 – Magnolia Point. 

[IF APPROVING] 

and to approve the Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness included in the 
Agenda packet [with the following modifications: STATE MODIFICATIONS, IF 
ANY]. 

Page 161 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 7b    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: Text Amendment – Article 2 – Zoning Districts 
 
DESCRIPTION: This proposed amendment to Article 2 – Zoning Districts 

would establish a Public Facilities district. 
 
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   Set Public Hearing  Table 2-1  
    for June 1, 2015   Use Regulations 
          
          
         
 
 
         
         
 
 
 
  
         
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 162 of 174



§ 155.200 DISTRICTS ESTABLISHED 
 
To carry out the provisions of this Chapter, within the jurisdiction of the Town, the following zoning 
districts are established.  
 

(A) General Use Districts 
 

(2)  Nonresidential 
 

(h) PF | Public Facilities.  The PF district is established to provide a coordinated land 
planning approach to the sale, rent, lease, purchase, management, or alteration of publicly owned or 
operated lands. Notwithstanding those public uses permitted elsewhere in this Code, the PF district 
is primarily intended for, although not limited to, public parks and recreation areas, public buildings 
and facilities, and other capital improvements of a significant nature. 

 
 

§ 155.202 - Table 2-1 Use Regulations 
 

Use Type 

Zoning Districts 

Specific Use 
Section 

Residential Nonresidential 

R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 PF 

Residential Uses 
Adult Care Home (2-6 Adults) P P P P         §155.301(A) 
Adult Care Home (7-12 Adults) S S S S  C S S S    §155.301(A) 
Adult Care Home (13+ Adults)      C S S S    §155.301(A) 
Alley Loaded House  P P P         §155.301(B) 
Apartments  S S S S S S S S    §155.301(C) 
Boarding House    C  P  P     §155.301(D) 
Child Care Home C C C C C        §155.301(E) 
Manufactured Home P            §155.301(F) 
Manufactured Home Park S            §155.301(G) 
Nursing Home (Congregate Living Facility) C   C  P  S P    §155.301(H) 
Two family House  S S S S        §155.301(I) 
Townhouse  S S S S S S S S    §155.301(J) 
Security/Caretaker Quarters C        C   C §155.301(K) 
Single Family House P P P P         §155.301(L) 
Upper-story Residence S S S S S P P P P    §155.301(M) 
Zero Lot Line House  P P P         §155.301(N) 
              
Public and Civic Uses 
Assembly, Not For Profit S     P   P   P §155.302(A) 
Cemetery P        P   P §155.302(B) 
Church or Place of Worship C C C C  C  C C    §155.302(C) 
College or University      P      P §155.302(D) 
Day Care (Supervision for 3-8 ) C C C C C        §155.302(E) 
Day Care (Supervision for 9+) C C C C C P P C P    §155.302(E) 
Government Service S S S S P P P P P P P P §155.302(F) 
Hospital or Medical Center      P   P   P §155.302(G) 
School (Elementary or Secondary) S S S S  S      P §155.302(H) 
School (Technical, Trade or Business) S S S S  P P  P P P P §155.302(I) 
Recreational Uses 
Entertainment, Indoor       C C C P P  P §155.303(A) 

ARTICLE 2:  ZONING DISTRICTS   

Page 163 of 174



Use Type 

Zoning Districts 

Specific Use 
Section 

Residential Nonresidential 

R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 PF 

Entertainment, Outdoor         C P  P §155.303(B) 
Fitness Center      C C C P P  P §155.303(C) 
Golf Course P P P P        P §155.303(D) 
Gun Range       S S S S S S §155.303(E) 
Park, Active S S S S S S S S S S S P §155.303(F) 
Park, Passive C C C C P P C C C C C P §155.303(G) 
Stable, Private P            §155.303(H) 
Agricultural Uses 
Agriculture, Livestock C          C  §155.304(A) 
Agriculture, Sales and Service P          C  §155.304(B) 
Nursery P     P P C P   P §155.304(C) 
Commercial Uses 
Adult Oriented Business         S  S  §155.305(A) 
Bed and Breakfast P     P P P P    §155.305(B) 
Car Wash/Auto Detailing      C C P P    §155.305(C) 
Contractor Office      C C  P P P  §155.305(D) 
Contractor Storage Yard         C C P  §155.305(E) 
Convenience Store with Gas Sales       C C P P P  §155.305(F) 
Creative Studio     P P P P P    §155.305(G) 
Financial Institution     P P P P P    §155.305(H) 
Funeral Home    C P P P P P    §155.305(I) 
Hotel/Motel      S S S P    §155.305(J) 
Kennel C       C     §155.305(K) 
Laundry Services       C  C P P  §155.305(L) 
Lounge, Cocktail       S  S S S  §155.305(M) 
Microbrewery       P  P P P  §155.305(N) 
Newspaper Publisher         P P P  §155.305(O) 
Office, General     P P P P P P  P §155.305(P) 
Office, Medical     P P P P P P   §155.305(Q) 
Outdoor Seating/Sidewalk Cafe      C P C C    §155.305(R) 
Pawn Shop         C P   §155.305(S) 
Radio or Television Studio         P P P  §155.305(T) 
Restaurant, Drive-Through         C C C   §155.305(U) 
Restaurant, General      C P P P C   §155.305(V) 
Retail Sales, General       P  P    §155.305(W) 
Retail Sales, Neighborhood       P P P    §155.305(X) 
Self-storage Facility         C P P  §155.305(Y) 
Service, General       P  P    §155.305(Z) 
Service, Neighborhood       P P P    §155.305(AA) 
Tattoo Parlor         S    §155.305(BB) 
Towing Service and Storage         C C C  §155.305(CC) 
Vehicle Repair or Service         S P P  §155.305(DD) 
Vehicle Sales and Rental         P P P  §155.305(EE) 
Veterinary Clinic      C C C P    §155.305(FF) 
Video Sweepstakes Operations          S   §155.305(GG) 
Industrial Uses 
Building Supplies, Wholesale         C P P  §155.306(A) 
Crematorium          P P  §155.306(B) 
Gas and Fuel, Wholesale          P P P §155.306(C) 
Laboratory, Research      P   P P P  §155.306(D) 
Manufacturing, Limited          P P  §155.306(E) 
Manufacturing, General          C P  §155.306(F) 
Manufacturing, Heavy           P  §155.306(G) 
Research and Development      P   P P P  §155.306(H) 
Warehouse, Freight Movement         C P P  §155.306(I) 
Utilities 
Recycling Center          P P P §155.307(A) 
Renewable Energy Facility S         C P P §155.307(B) 
Telecommunication Facility S S S S S S S S S S S S §155.307(C) 
Utility, Minor P P P P P P P P P P P P §155.307(D) 

Page 164 of 174



Use Type 

Zoning Districts 

Specific Use 
Section 

Residential Nonresidential 

R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2 PF 

Utility, Major          P P P §155.307(E) 
Waste Service          C P P §155.307(F) 
 Key: 
 P – Permitted  
 C – Conditional Use permitted in the zoning district only if approved by the Board of Adjustment (BOA) ( § 155.710) 
 S – Special Use permitted in the zoning district only if approved by the Town Council (TC) ) ( § 155.711) 

 
 
 

§ 155.203, PART 2. Table 2-5 Nonresidential Dimensional Standards 

Zoning 
District 

Lot Standards Minimum Setbacks (ft.) Building Standards(3) 

Min. Lot 
Area 

(sq.ft.) 

Min. 
Lot 

Width 
(ft.) 

Public 
Water & 

Sewer 

Street /  
Front 
(Max.) 

Side 
Interior 

(abutting 
residential) 

Side 
Street 

Rear 
(abutting 

residential) 

Max. 
Building 
Height 
(ft.)(1) 

Building 
Coverage 

Impervious 
Surface 

O-R 6,000 50 Required 20 6 (6) 10 20 (20) 35 50% 75% 

O-I 6,000 60 Required 30 10 (30) 20 20 (30) 60 50% 75% 
B-1(1) None None Required 0(2) 0 (30) 0 0 (30) 50 -- -- 
B-2 6,000 50 Required 20 10 (30) 10 20 (30) 35 50% 75% 
B-3 8,000 60 Required 25 15 (30) 30 30 (30) 60 50% 75% 
I-1 20,000 100 Required 50 20 (30) 30 40 (40) 50 50% 75% 
I-2 20,000 100 Required 50 20 (30) 30 40 (40) 50 50% 75% 
PF -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Notes: 
(1) No maximum building coverage or impervious surface limits in the B-1 Zoning District 
(2) Maximum 10 foot street yard setback in B-1 Zoning District 
(3) Minimum Building Separation in all Zoning Districts is 20 feet 
(4) The Town Council may grant a special use permit in accordance with § 155.711 for structures exceeding the maximum height limits 

TABLE 4-5 COMPATIBILITY BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Subject Property 
District 

Adjacent Property District 
R-E R-10 R-8 R-6 O-R O-I B-1 B-2 B-3 I-1 I-2  PF 

R-E - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
R-10 A - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
R-8 B A - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
R-6 B A A - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
O-R B A A A - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
O-I B B B B A - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
B-1 B B B B B B - - B - - - - - - - - 
B-2 B B B B B B - - - - - - - - - - - - 
B-3 C C C C C B B B - - - - - - B 
I-1 C C C C C C C C B - - - - B 
I-2 C C C C C C C C B - - - - B 
PF - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - 

 

Formatted Table

Page 165 of 174

http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Clayton,%20NC%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A180a$cid=north%20carolina$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_155.710$3.0%23JD_155.710
http://www.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=id$id=Clayton,%20NC%20Code%20of%20Ordinances%3Ar%3A180a$cid=north%20carolina$t=document-frame.htm$an=JD_155.710$3.0%23JD_155.710


Page 166 of 174



COUNCIL MOTION SHEET 
ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT  

(Text Amendment)  
 
 

After considering the recommendations of the Planning Board and Planning 
Director, I move to [approve OR deny]  Text Amendment Modification to 
Article 2 of the Unified Development Code. 
 
[IF APPROVING] 
 
and to approve the Statement of Consistency and Reasonableness included in the 
Agenda packet [with the following modifications: STATE MODIFICATIONS, IF 
ANY]. 

 
 

Page 167 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 7c    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: Award of Bid for the 2014 Clayton Streets Projects 
 
DESCRIPTION: Mr. Simpson will present an overview of the bid process and 

suggested award of bid for the 2014 Clayton Streets Project. 
 
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   Set Public Hearing  Bid Tabulations  

for June 1, 2015 Recommendation of 
Award Letter 

          
          
         
 
 
         
         
 
 
 
  
         
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 168 of 174



Page 169 of 174



2014 TOWN OF CLAYTON STREETS PROJECT  
PROJECT # 14-005                                                                                                                                                                                                  APRIL 7, 2015 

BID TABULATION SHEET 
2014 CLAYTON STREETS PROJECT 

Bid Opening 
Tuesday, April 7, 2015 @ 2:00 p.m. 

Clayton Operations Center 
653 NC 42 West 

Clayton, NC 27520  
 

Contractor Bid Bond Total Bid 
T. A. Loving Yes $1,448,196.25 

Narron Contracting Yes $1,580,563.80 

Fred Smith Company Yes $1,687,451.00 

Lanier Construction Company, Inc. Yes $1,797,108.50 

Keen Plumbing Yes $1,808,997.60 

   

Sanderson Engineering, Inc. - Engineer’s Estimate  $1,240,324.50 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

Page 170 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 
 

Agenda Item: 7d    Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 
 
TITLE: Special Event – 2015-09 –Grill Fest 
 
DESCRIPTION: Bruce Naegelen will present an overview of the request and 

details for Grill Fest.  This Event is scheduled to be held on 
July 11, 2015 at Town Square. 

 
RELATED GOAL:  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: 
 
Date:  Action:    Info. Provided: 
 
5-18-15   Place on June 1, 2015   Special Event Report 
    Consent Agenda     
         
 
 
 

Page 171 of 174



 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Staff Contact:  Bruce Naegelen: 919-280-1278 
EVENT INFORMATION:  
 
Event Name: Grill Fest File Number:   2015-09 

Event Description:  Cornhole tournament, live Christian music/spoke word performances.  

  

Event Date(s): 7/11/15 Event Time(s): 10:30 am – 4:00 pm 

Event Location:   Town Square 

Event Coordinator: Hunter Crocker Contact Number: 919-201-0019 

Contact Email: Grilling4god@gmail.com 

Attendees (Per Day): 300  
 
 

TOWN SERVICES REQUESTED: 
Department / 

Division 
Requested Services Date/Time Primary 

Contact 
Contact 
Phone # 

Electric 
Department 

Use of power panels at Town Square 
on Fayetteville & O’Neil Street  

7/11/15 Dale Medlin 359-1292 

Public Works - 5 Trash roll-out carts & 4 
Recycled  

- Town Square Parking Lot 
closure barricades 

Drop-off: 
7/10/15 & 
Pick-up: 
7/13/15 at 
Town 
Square 

Steve Blasko 359-1287 

Town Council Authorize closure of Town Square 
Parking Lot 

Saturday, 
7/11/15 
from 6:00 
am to 6:00 
pm 

  

 
 

STAFF USE: 
SEC 
Approval 

  Approved 
Date:  4/30/15   No Council Action needed    Denied 

    
Council 
Action 

Presentation        Date: 5/18/15   Approved      Denied 
Consent Agenda    Date: 6/1/15 Date:   

    
Pending 
Actions 

  DOT Road Closure Approval 

  Issue Permit    Date:   
  ABC Permit Submittal 
  Other 

(SEC – Special Event Committee)  

Town of Clayton 
Planning Department 

111 E. Second Street, Clayton, NC 27520 
P.O. Box 879, Clayton, NC 27528 

Phone:  919-553-5002 
Fax:  919-553-1720 

SPECIAL EVENT ACTION ITEM REPORT 

Page 172 of 174



TOWN OF CLAYTON 
TOWN COUNCIL 

AGENDA COVER SHEET 

Agenda Item: 7e Meeting Date:  May 18, 2015 

TITLE: Sole Source Purchase 

DESCRIPTION: Mr. James Warren, will provide information on the 
recommendation of the sole sourcing purchaseof the 
nitrogen process equipment at the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant. 

RELATED GOAL: 

ITEM SUMMARY: 

Date: Action: Info. Provided: 

5-18-15 Place on June 1, 2015 Letter 
Consent Agenda  

Page 173 of 174



Page 174 of 174


	AGENDA COVER PAGE
	May 18 2015 DRAFT Agenda
	3a Cover Budget Amendment
	3a General Fund Budget Amendment Ordinance

	4a Cover Warranty and Dedications
	4a Warranty and Dedication Acceptance

	4b COVER Annexation 14-100-01 East Village Investments
	4b ANX 14-100-01 Documents
	4b Resolution authorizing clerk to investigation ANX 14-100-01

	4c COVER 15-16 FY Budget Public Notice
	4c Budget Public Notice

	5a COVER Electric System Bond Revenue
	5a Electric System Bond Revenue Resolution

	6a COVER Electricities
	6a Debt Service Support Contract
	6a Power Sales Agreement
	6a Power Sales Termination Agreement
	6a ORDINANCE

	6b COVER Infrastucture Reports
	6b 70-70 Executive Summary
	6b 42-70 Executive Summary

	6c COVER Main Street Accreditation
	6c 2015 Accreditation Council Memo
	6c Main Street Certification

	7a Cover Magnolia Pointe
	7a  Rezoning 2014-99 Magnolia Place Staff Report and Documents
	Aerial Map
	Zoning Maps
	Table Use Regulations
	Application
	Warranty Deed
	Adjacent Property Owner Info
	Neighborhood Meeting Summary
	Neighborhood Meeting Roster
	Planning Board Recommendation

	7a MOTION Rezoning 2014-99 Magnolia Pointe 

	7b Cover Text Amendment
	7b Text AmendmentModification to Article 2 Documents
	7b MOTION Text Amendment Modification Article 2 

	7c Cover Bid Award 2014 Clayton Streets Project 
	7c 2014 Clayton Street Project Documents
	7c Bid Tabulation 4-7-15

	7d COVER Grill Fest
	7d  GrillFest Event Report

	7e COVER Sole Source Purchase
	7e Wastewater Treatment Sole Source Letter




